
 

CITY OF BONNERS FERRY 

7232 Main Street  

P.O. Box 149 

Bonners Ferry, Idaho  83805 

      Phone: 208-267-3105  Fax: 208-267-4375 

 

STAFF REPORT FOR 

VACATION OF PLATTED ALLEYWAY 

FILE #VC02-16 – CASE VACATION 

 

Prepared by:  Lisa Ailport, AICP  

City Planner 

Project Description:   Petition to vacate a portion of a 16-foot alleyway within Block 17, 
of the Amended Plat of Bonners Ferry, Book 1C, Page 67, which 
can be generally be described as being between Lots 1-3 and Lots 
22-24.    

Location:  The project is located south east of Boundary Street and North of 
North River Drive.  

Parcel size: 1,696 square feet is proposed to be vacated.  

Applicant: Robert and Linda Case  

Applicant’s Representative: Clare Marley, Ruen-Yeager and Associates  

Property Owner:  Same as applicant’s  

Petition filed with City: October 21, 2016 

Notice Provided:  Mailed: December 6, 2016 

 Published in Paper: December 1, 2016 and December 8, 2016 

Council Packets :  Staff report 

  Application and Petitions 

  Traffic Safety Minutes of November 16, 2016 

  Public Comments 

  Plat of Amended Plat of Bonners Ferry 

  Official notice and official mailing of record 



 

 

2 VC02-16  

Vacation of portion of a 16-foot Alleyway 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

The applicant is requesting to vacate a portion of a platted alleyway located adjacent to existing 

property owned by the applicant (see aerial below).  The applicant asserts the vacation is 

requested because the public right-of-way serves no public need, has never been constructed in 

125 years and cannot physically connect to the existing public road.   

  

Alleyway serves no public need:  

According to the application, no utilities are located within the alley.  A review of city plans and 
utilities also concludes that no city utilities are located within the alley.  Staff also forwarded 
the file to the City departments seeking comments or feedback regarding the request and did 
not receive any response from city agencies/departments regarding the proposed vacation.   

Alleyway has never been constructed:  

According to the application, the alleyway was dedicated to the public with the recording of the 
plat of Bonners Ferry, Idaho on July 9, 1890 when Bonners Ferry was still a part of Kootenai 
County.  The plat has been in existence since 1890, over 125 years, and the alleyway, according 
to the applicant has only been improved with the homeowner’s improvements (see application 
photos).   

Alleyway cannot physically connect to the public road: 

The platted alleyway intersects an existing public right-of-way, however this area is not where 
the physical road is located.  As shown in the above aerial, North River Drive is physically 
located south of the platted right of way, which is likely due to topography in the area.  
According to the application, a bench/slope runs east to west which prohibits connection to the 
existing road known as North River Drive.  Photos were submitted with the application showing 
the topographic constraints.   

 



 

 

3 VC02-16  

Vacation of portion of a 16-foot Alleyway 

 

ANALYSIS:  

According to Idaho Code 50-311, the City may vacate a public right-of-way when it is 
determined to be “expedient for the public good” to do so.  Furthermore, IC 50-1306A 
stipulates certain procedures to be adhered to and a public hearing held.  Once these 
requirements have been met, the City Council may grant the request to vacate with such 
restrictions as they deem necessary in the public interest.  

While State statutes dictate the council can take this action once the notification procedures 
have been completed, the City does little to standardize how to evaluate the what “expedient 
for the public good” means.  Staff, in processing the application to hearing has attempted to 
extract out facts through the application and petition materials and by routing the request to 
agencies and departments to seek comments and/or recommendations by those departments.   

The application was routed to the Traffic Safety Committee, which met on November 16, 2016.  
This vacation request was the first petition many on the Committee had ever considered.  Staff 
provided the following questions in order help the dialog of evaluating what how vacating the 
right-of-way could affect city connectivity and use:  

1. Has the right-of-way served the public in the past?  
a.    Has the right of way served as a transportation corridor in the past? 
b. Has there ever been any city owned or public utilities within the right of way? 

 
2. Does the right-of-way currently serve the public?  

a.   Is there currently any recognized use of the right of way such as trails, pathways 
or other travelways?  

b. Does anyone or any property require the right of way to maintain access to 
property?  
 

3. Will the right-of-way serve the public in the future?   
a.   Is there a future need to maintaining or keeping the right of way to connect trail 

systems or pathways?   
b. Will there be a need to in the future have a corridor for future transportation 

planning efforts?  

After evaluating the above the Traffic Safety Committee felt the existing alley did not serve the 
interest of the public currently or in the future, and therefore made a motion to recommend 
approval to City Council (see attached minutes).   

No other departments or agencies commented on the file.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

The City received public comments from the following.  A summary of the comments are 
included, but the council packet includes the entire comment:  

Steve Galbraith provided written letter of opposition, received on December 13, 2016, noting 
that the vacation, if approved, would limit access to an existing power pole that serves three 
properties in the area.   

Staff Note: The existing power pole may be located within the platted right-of-way of North 
River Drive.  This portion of the right-of-way is not being requested as part of the vacation 
request.  Furthermore, a condition securing the franchised rights of any easements is provided 
as a condition of approval (see condition #3). 



 

 

4 VC02-16  

Vacation of portion of a 16-foot Alleyway 

 

DeAnna Galbraith provided a written letter of opposition to the file received December 12, 
2016 noting similar issues as did Steve Galbraith did regarding access to the existing power 
pole.   

Lillian Clements provided a written letter to the file, received December 9, 2016, noting that 
she walks her dogs along Arapaho alley and the vacation would restrict her access to the public 
alleyway.  She is opposed to the vacation.   

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Ultimately it is City Council who has to weigh the facts and the testimony at the hearing to 
ensure adequate evidence supports what “expedient for the public good” is and what it means.  
Draft findings have been prepared based on the file. 

APPLICABLE LAWS:  

Idaho Code §50-311(Vesting)  Idaho Code §50-1306, (procedural)  

Idaho Code §50-1320 (Vesting) Idaho Code §50-1324 (Taxes pd) 

DRAFT MOTION BY THE COUNCIL 

Motion to Approve:  I move to approve this file VC02-16, to vacate a portion of a 16-foot wide 
alleyway within Block 17 of the Amended Plat of Bonners Ferry, book 1C Page 67, finding that it 
is in accord with Idaho Code 50-1306A and the standards of approval as outlined in the staff 
report and testimony received at this hearing.  I further move to adopt the following findings of 
fact and reasoned decisions and including the conditions of approval (as amended, or as 
submitted) and enumerated in the staff report.  The actions to be taken to obtain the vacation 
is to complete the conditions of approval as provided.  (read conclusions 1-3) 

 

Motion to Deny:  I move to deny this file VC02-16, to vacate a portion of a 16-foot wide 
alleyway within Block 17 of the Amended Plat of Bonners Ferry, book 1C Page 67, finding that it 
is not in accord with Idaho Code 50-1306A and the standards of approval as outlined in the staff 
report and the testimony received at the public hearing.  Furthermore, I move to adopt the 
following findings of fact and reasoned decisions (read conclusions 1-3- noting the findings that 
support your claim-which conclusions does it fail to meet) 

The actions to be taken to receive approval is  

1. Submit a new petition that meets the standards of Idaho Code 50-311 and 50-
1306A  

  



 

 

5 VC02-16  

Vacation of portion of a 16-foot Alleyway 

 

REASONED DECISION 

*The above staff report and subsequent evidence in the record provides for the findings of 
fact required in order to make any conclusion of law.  Based upon those findings, the 
following conclusions are proposed to be adopted by the City Council by motion to approve.   

Conclusion 1:  

The proposal was review for compliance with I.C. §50-1306A notification requirements, 
procedures, and §50-1324 necessity of taxes paid. Therefore, the proposal is/is not in 
accordance with the applicable notification standards.  

Finding:  Certified mailings of the request to vacate was sent to landowners within 300-feet of 
the lands to be vacated on December 6, 2016 (file record).  

Finding:  Notification of the proposed hearing was published in the December 1
st

, and 
December 8

th
 by affidavit of publication by the Bonners Ferry Herald (file record).   

Conclusion 2:  

The vacation of right-of-way is/is not in the interest of the public  

Draft Finding: The alleyway has not been constructed in 125 years and does not contain any 
known easements or utilities (application).  

Draft Finding: Physical topographic constraints prevent future construction of the alleyway and 
prevent the alley from connecting to the existing North River Drive in (application). 

Draft Finding:  The Traffic Safety Committee made a motion to recommend approval of the 
vacation finding that the right-of-way does not currently serve the interest of the public and will 
not serve the interest of the public in the future (draft 11/16 minutes).  

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

1. The vacation of the above described right-of-way shall be effective upon recording of a 
resolution by the Council granting the vacation, vesting to reside with Robert and Linda 
Case.   

2. Prior to recording of the vacation resolution, warranty deed(s) shall be prepared for 
recording combining the vacated alleyway with the ownership on either side of the 
alleyway to the satisfaction of the City.  Once the vacation is recorded, the deed(s) shall 
be recorded combining the ownership into one parcel of land.  The deed(s) shall 
reference the following language in the recording of the property consolidation, “The 
franchised rights of and easements of public utilities, if any, shall not be impaired by the 
recording of the vacation and shall remain in force.”   

 

 
 







































































 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Bonners Ferry City Council, pursuant to Idaho Code 50-

13 will conduct a public hearing at City Hall, 7232 Main Street, on Tuesday, December 

20, at 6:00 p.m. to consider vacating a portion of a 16-foot wide public alleyway.  Linda 

and Robert Case are seeking to vacate a portion of a 16-foot wide alleyway near North 

River Drive (south) and Boundary Street (east).  The portion to be vacated is within 

Block 17 of the Amended Plat of Bonners Ferry, Book 1C, Page 67 and can be generally 

described as being between Lots 1-3 and Lots 22-24. The vacation will encompass 

approximately 1,696 square feet, all of which would be conveyed to the applicant in 

accordance with Idaho Code, if approved. Vacations are allowed only when they are 

found to be in the interest of the public, per IC. 50-1306A(3).   

 

The deadline for submitting written comment and/or material is 5:00 p.m. December 13, 

2016.  Written comment may be mailed to City of Bonners Ferry, P. O. Box 149, 

Bonners Ferry, ID 83805, or faxed to (208) 267-4375.  Written comment of one page or 

less will be accepted at the hearing provided the person submitting the material reads it 

into the record.   

 

Anyone requiring special accommodation due to disability should contact the City Clerk 

at (208) 267-3105 at least two days prior to the meeting. 

 

 

City of Bonners Ferry  

 

 

ATTEST: __________________________ 

                 City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Publish:   December 1, 2016 

  December 8, 2016 

 

CITY OF BONNERS FERRY 
7232 Main Street 

P.O. Box 149 
Bonners Ferry, ID 83805 

Phone: (208) 267-3105 Fax: (208) 267-4375 

 



 

11/16/16 Traffic Safety Committee Meeting  1 

 

The Traffic Safety Committee meeting of November 16, 2016 convened at 1:07 p.m. at City 

Hall.  Present for the meeting were John Marquette, Richard Hollenbeck, Don Lindsay, Foster 

Mayor, Police Chief Vic Watson, City Administrator Mike Klaus, City Planner Lisa Ailport, 

Street Superintendent John Youngwirth, and Clerk Kris Larson. 

Foster Mayor moved to approve the October 19, 2016 meeting minutes.  John Marquette 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed, all in favor. 

Lisa Ailport spoke regarding File #VC02-16: Vacation of a portion of a 16 foot alleyway near 

North River Drive and Boundary Street (amended plat of Bonners Ferry).  She reviewed a record 

of survey from JRS Surveying with the group to display where the proposed vacation request is 

located.  John Youngwirth said the alley does not exist.  Don Lindsay asked if the alley is 

abandoned what the taxable value would be.   Lisa said the applicant owns lots 1, 2, and 3 and on 

the other side of the alley lots 22, 23, and 24.  She said they will be required to combine the lots 

with the abandoned alleyway.   

John Youngwirth asked if Galbraith’s are aware of this abandonment and if they were okay with 

it.  Lisa said we have not notified everyone yet as we are in the process of working with agencies 

now.  If the application goes forward the public within 300 feet will be notified of the hearing 

date.   

Foster asked if the property serves any purpose now and if it will ever be needed in the future.  

Lisa said State statue says the vacation should be in the public interest.  She submitted a list of 

questions to the group for consideration of what public interest may be.  Foster said he 

appreciated the definitions.   

John Youngwirth said there is physically no alley there.  It is a rock outcropping. Mike Klaus 

said the upper portion of the alley may be usable but the south end is not.  John Youngwirth said 

it is worth more for tax purposes than an alley.  

John Marquette said he does not see why there would be a problem vacating this alley.  Vic said 

the applicant has utilized the alley property already, and he thinks the best avenue would be to 

vacate the property.  Lisa said in the interest of the City, someone that takes over city property 

does not necessarily warrant property by abandonment.  She said future value needs to be 

considered such as if the City would want to have a trail or park in that area. 

Vic asked if the Committee feels there is future value in the land for the City or the public.  Mike 

said it could be used for a pedestrian path to North River Drive but steps would have to be built.  

John Youngwirth said he sees taxable value as a benefit.  Mike said if it was flat ground he 

would feel differently than he does now but because it is so steep and rocky that it does not seem 

to have future value.   

Vic said he is satisfied that the right of way does not serve the public currently or in the future. 

Foster Mayo moved that the right of way for the alley does not serve the interest of the public 

now or in the future.  John Marquette seconded the motion.  The motion passed, all in favor. 



 

11/16/16 Traffic Safety Committee Meeting  2 

 

John Youngwirth said there is no handicapped parking space near the Hair Connection and 

Mugsy’s where people are being dropped off to get their hair done.  He said it would need a 

handicapped sign and designation for parking space.  John Marquette moved to recommend to 

City Council that we put a handicapped parking space in front of Mugsy’s and the Hair 

Connection on Main Street.  Don Lindsay seconded the motion.  The motion passed, all in favor. 

Richard Hollenbeck asked what the rules were for people parking camp trailers on the streets.  

Vic said he needs to know where it is and how the City has the area marked.  He said if it is not 

prohibited it would be allowed as long as it has a current license.  Richard is concerned about 

snow plowing this winter.  He said it is on Eisenhower near his residence.   

Richard Hollenbeck had a request from a resident on Montana and Hazel Streets to put a 

centerline on the street because people cut the corner when they are traveling to and from the 

cemetery.  John Youngwirth said it is too late this year to paint, but he will do it next year.   

Mike Klaus spoke regarding the speed limit from the Golf Course to the City limits.  He would 

like to see the speed limit reduced in this area as sight distance is a problem, and he is concerned 

about people pulling on the highway from the Golf Course and from the side roads in that area.  

Foster said there were three fatalities in that area in the past few years.  Foster was discouraged 

with the State’s work on the speed limit in the Three Mile area as they only reduced the speed 

limit by 5 miles per hour.   

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:47 p.m.       

     

    

 

 

 



CITY OF BONNERS FERRY 

7232 Main Street  

P.O. Box 149 

Bonners Ferry, Idaho  83805 

Phone: 208-267-3105  Fax: 208-267-4375 
 

 

 

 

November 3, 2016 
 
TO: 
 

  Panhandle Health District                  Idaho Dept. of Water Resources 

  City of Bonners Ferry Street Dept.                 City of Bonners Ferry Utility (Electric)  

  City of Bonners Ferry Fire Dept.                  City of Bonners Ferry Police Dept.   

  City of BF Utility (Sewer/Water)                 Traffic Safety Committee  

  Boundary County School District                 Fish and Wildlife Service 

  Avista Power Company                 Forest Service 

  Frontier                  State Fire Prevention Marshall (Dist. 1) 

  Idaho Dept. of Fish and Game                 Other  ______________________ 

 
FROM:  Lisa M. Ailport, AICP, City Planner   
 
SUBJECT: File #VC02-16: Vacation of a portion of a 16-foot Alleyway near North 

River Drive & Boundary St (Amended Plat of Bonners Ferry) 
 
The enclosed application has been submitted to the City of Bonners Ferry for processing.  Linda 
and Robert Case are seeking to vacate a portion of a 16-foot wide alleyway near North River 
Drive (south) and Boundary Street (east).  The portion to be vacated is within Block 17 of the 
Amended Plat of Bonners Ferry, Book 1C, Page 67 and can be generally described as being 
between Lots 1-3 and Lots 22-25 (see attached application). The vacation will encompass 
approximately 1,696 square feet, all of which would be conveyed to the applicant in accordance 
with Idaho Code, if approved. Vacations are allowed only when they are found to be in the 
interest of the public, per IC. 50-1306A(3).  Please review the application relative to your 
agency’s area of expertise and include any recommended conditions of approval or if any 
additional information is requested by your agency prior to City staff scheduling or holding this 
project for public hearing.   
 
Please respond by November 18, 2016 by 5:00 pm, in order for your comments to be 
included with the file record.  Comments received after the above date, may be entered as 
public comments.  If no response is provided, staff will conclude your agency has no objections 
to the project or recommended conditions. 
 
If you have no comment or response, you may indicate below and return this form to 
the City as soon as possible to speed processing time.  Thank you for your assistance. 
 
 
NO COMMENT____________________________________________            ___________ 
                         Agency Name, Initials of Agency Representative                    Date 

 
c: Applicant (w/o enclosures) 
 Project Representative (w/o enclosures).   














	Staff Report for CASE Vacation
	VC02-16 APP_20161025130657
	VC02-16 DEEDS_20161025130845
	VC02-16 PHOTOS_20161025131305
	VC02-16PHOTOS_20161025131118
	VC02-16 AERIAL_20161025131001
	Bonners Ferry Amended (1)
	Notice of Public Hearing - mailing
	Minutes 11-16-16 Traffic Safety Committee
	VC02-16 AGENCY REVIEW
	vc0216 public comment_20161214093753
	vc02-16 public comment_20161214094236

